District 1: FEastview-Conway-Battle Creek-Highwood

District 1 is Tocated in the southeast corner of Ramsey County
and is the largest of Sf. Paul's planning districts. It is
bounded on the north by Minnehaha Avenue; on the west by
Birmingham Street, Warner Road, and the Mississippi River;
on-the south by Washington County; and on the east by Mcanght
Road. ‘ | ‘

Steep, wooded bluffs in the Battle Creek and Highwood areas
east of Highway 61 and immense stretches of marshy Tand surrounding
Pig's Eye Lake along the Mississippi River were among the distinct
natural characteristics which discouraged widespread settlement of
the area during the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.
The first permanent inhabitants were the Kaposia band of Mdewakanton
Dakota Indians who lived in a large village near Pig's Eye Lake from
circa 1775 until the early nﬁneteenéh century. By the 1820's the
village had been relocated to near Dayton's Bluff. Later, circa
1838, a small group of French Canadian fur traders established a
vi11age'etythe northwest corner of Pig's Eye Lake, a site now marked
by the Pvg S Eye Sewage Treatment Plant (established in the 1930's).
ATthough both A sawmill and a school were built at the village of
Pig's Eye, the t1ny communTty dxsappeared during the 1860's as
1nhab1tants moved aorth into St. Paul. ,

Durlng much of the nwneteenth century the area served s1mp1y as
a gateway to St PauT and was crossed by ear]y roads -= Pig's Eye
and St Paul Po1nt Doug1as and Fort Ripley, Hudson and St Pau?, and
the Afton and St Paul - roads.  In the 1860 s railroad service reached
the area as the Chwcago M11waukee and St Paul railroad 11ne was
constructed along Point Douglas Road. In the Tate 1880 S a second
railroad, “the Chwcago, Burlington, and Northern, laid tracks through
the area and Tinked it with St. Paul. ‘ g

The construction ofrthe"Chicago; Bun1ington, and Northenn]rail—
road line occurred abodt the time the area was being annexed in three
stages by the city of St. Paul (1872, 1885, and 1887). The new
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railroad Tine sourred a brief period of deve1opment‘in the area.
In 1886 a syndicate of St. Paul and Boston businessmen formed
the Union Land Company and purchased about 1200 acres of land in
the Highwood area. They built two small railroad stations about
one mile apért., A "commuter suburb" was planned with large rustic
lots separated by curvfng roads which ran along the river bluffs.
Although Burlington Heights, as the suburb was called, was linked
to downtown St. Paul by rail lines and offered residents the
édvantages of country living, the development achieved limited
success and only a handful of houses were built during the Tlate
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. It was not until well
after World War II when roads were improved and automobiles
popularized that District 1 was settle {extensive1y, Compared
to’ the re%t'of the city, the district is still sparsely settled
and 56% of its land remains undevelope&.

The Historic Sites Survey of District 1 identified relatively
few houses still standing in the district that date from the turn
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ﬂ. 882 S. Point Douglas Road, Charles E. Joy House, 1888,
designed by Charles E. Joy. (Photo by Gary Phelps)

14

.

P T



of the century or earlier. Very fe@ recognizable farmhouses were
identified. The Survey did discover a few houses along Point

Douglas Road which may date from.the 1870's or early 1880's and

are probably linked to that road's importance as an early route

Teading south from St. Paul. The mos&»significant discovery in

District 1 was about one dozen large, woodframe houses built during

the late 1880's which were clearly built soon after the Burlington

Heights commuter suburb was platted. About half of these houses

are basically intact and many were obviously architect-designed.

Several of the most sophisticated Queen Anne and Shingle style

houses were designed by St. Paul architect Charles E. Joy, whose

own house stands at 882 S. Point Douglas Road (no. 1). Other intaét
Victorian houses which were constructed as part of the Burlington

Heights development stand at 55 E. Howard Avenue, 738 Point Douglas s
Road, 482 S. Point Douglas Road (nc. 2), and 770 S. Brookline Avenue (no. 3).
The remainder of ,1str1cL 1 conta1ns'bungalows, 1940's and 1950;5 tract
housing concenbrated 1n the northern por7mons of the d1str1ct éhd*

2. 482 S. Point Douglas Road, House, ca. 1888, desian
attributed to Charles E. Joy. (Photo by Patrwcwa Murphy)
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1970's and 1980's split level and ranch style houses concentrated
inithe southern half of the district. District 1 has a few
interesting examples of modern architectural designs.

At present there are no sites in District 1 which have been
designated as historic sites. FoT]owingfis a list of sites in
Di§¢r1ct 1 which the Historic Sites Surééy staff believes are
e1rg1b]e for 11st1ng w1th the Nat1ona1 Register of Historic
P1ates and/or the St. Paul Hew1tage Preservation Commission and

a tist of additional sites of major significance. Approximate
locations of the sites are shd%n on the accompanying map. It is
also suggested that the most i@tact houses in the district which
date from the development of the Burlington Heights commuter sub-
urb be grouped in a thematic nomination to the National Register
of Historic Places and the St.TPaul Heritage Preservation Commis-
sion.

3. 770 S Brook11ne Avenue, Harry I. Wexkert House ca.
1888, design attributed to Charles E. Joy. (Photo by
Gary Phe]ps)
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DISTRICT 1

Sites Already Designated - none

Sites Eligible for Designation

1.
2.
3.
4.

5.

770 S. Bﬁbpk}inevAvénué,lHarry'I, Wéikert House
55 5. Howard Street, House

%82 5. Point Douglas Road, House

738 5. Point Douglas Read, George M. Deeks House

882 S.‘Poinﬁ Doug1as_ROad,‘CharTes‘E.,Joy House

Additional Sitéé of Major Significance

6.

7.

10.
11.
12.
13.

14.

2040 E..HféﬁWood Avenue, House

2064 E. Hj§hwood Avenue, House

489 S. Mystic Street, House

654 S. Point Douglas Road, House

662 S. Point Douglas Road, House ’

766 S. Point Douglas Road, Walter Draper’Housé

858 5. Point Douglas Road, Oliver S. Hagerman House
Ca. 1260 S. Point Douglas Road, House

Ca., 1326 S. Point Douglas Road, Roadside Architecture
(miniature golf course)

Potentja] Historic District

Burlington Heights Houses Thematic Nomination
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DISTRICT 1

MAP
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